
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Social Services, 
Housing and 
Public Health 
Policy Overview 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Wayne Bridges, (Chairman) 

Jane Palmer, (Vice-Chairman}  

Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana 

Teji Barnes 

Peter Davis 

Beulah East 

Tony Eginton 

Becky Haggar 

Peter Money 

 

 

 

Co-Opted Member 
 
Mary O'Connor 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 18 
JANUARY 2017 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting 

 

  

Published: Tuesday, 10 January 2017 

 Contact: Khalid Ahmed  - Democratic 
Services Manager 
Tel: 01895 250833 
Email: kahmed@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available on the Council’s Intranet (Horizon) at:  

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=324&Year=2015 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 
 

 



 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING & PUBLIC HEALTH  
 
 
To perform the policy overview role outlined above in relation to the following matters: 
 

1. Adult Social Care 
2. Older People’s Services  
3. Care and support for people with physical disabilities, mental health problems 

and learning difficulties 
4. Asylum Seekers 
5. Local Authority Public Health services  
6. Encouraging a fit and healthy lifestyle  
7. Health Control Unit, Heathrow  
8. Encouraging home ownership  
9. Social and supported housing provision for local residents 
10. Homelessness and housing needs 
11. Home energy conservation  
12. National Welfare and Benefits changes 

 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1 Apologies for Absence and to report the presence of any substitute 
Members 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2016 1 - 10 
 

4 To confirm that the items of business marked in Part I will be 
considered in Public and that the items marked Part II will be 
considered in Private 

 
 

5 Budget Proposals Report for Social Services Housing and Public 
Health Services 2017/18  

 
 

 To Follow.  

6 Major Review 2016/17 - Hospital Discharges - Consideration of 
evidence and suggested recommendations 

11 - 20 
 

7 Possible Second Major Review Topic - 2016/17 21 - 24 
 

8 Draft Final Report - Stroke Prevention   
 

 To Follow.  

9 Forward Plan 25 - 28 
 

10 Work Programme 29 - 32 
 



                                                                                                                             

Minutes 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING AND PUBLIC 
HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
Wednesday 14 December 2016 
Meeting held at Committee Room 6- Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors Wayne Bridges (Chairman),Jane Palmer (Vice-Chairman), Shehryar 
Ahmad-Wallana, Peter Davis, Beulah East, Tony Eginton and Peter Money. 
 
Apologies for Absence: 
Councillors Teji Barnes, Becky Haggar and Co-opted Member, Mary O'Connor.  
 
Officers: 
Gary Collier (Health & Social Care Integration Manager), Nina Durnford (Head 
of Social Work, Adult Social Care Services), Dr Steve Hajioff (Director of Public 
Health) and Khalid Ahmed (Democratic Services Manager). 
 
Also Present: Kim Cox (Borough Director, Central North West London NHS 
Foundation Trust), Claire Eves (Head of Adult Services, Central North West 
London NHS Foundation Trust), Graham Hawkes (Chief Executive Officer, 
Healthwatch Hillingdon), Caroline Morison (Chief Operating Officer, Hillingdon 
Clinical Commissioning Group), Vanessa Saunders (Deputy Director of Nursing, 
Hillingdon Hospital), Dr. Julie Vowles (Consultant Geriatrician, Hillingdon 
Hospital) and Julie Wright (Director of Integrated Care, Hillingdon Hospital).  
 

31. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 2 NOVEMBER 2016  
 
Agreed as an accurate record. 
 

32. TO CONFIRM THAT ALL ITEMS MARKED PART I WILL BE CONSIDERED 
IN PUBLIC AND THAT ANY ITEMS MARKED PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE   
 
It was confirmed that all items on the agenda would be considered in public. 
 

33. MAJOR REVIEW - HOSPITAL DISCHARGES 
 
For this witness session, the Committee was provided with the 
perspective on hospital discharges from patients (Healthwatch) 
and from Hillingdon Hospital and Central North West London 
NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
Healthwatch Hillingdon  
 
Graham Hawkes, Chief Executive Officer of Healthwatch 
attended the meeting and provided Members with a summary 
of the recent review which had been carried out by the 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



organisation into hospital discharges from Hillingdon Hospital. 
 
The project aimed to gain an understanding of the discharge 
process from the perspective of the patient. It looked at what 
went well, and what did not go well. 
 
The project focussed on adults over the age of 65 and their 
experiences of being discharged from Hillingdon Hospital. 
 
The methodology of the review was split into three stages. 
Stage 1 involved 172 patients being interviewed and 
completing a survey on 17 different wards at the Hospital. 
Dependent on the condition of the patient, patient's advocates 
completed the survey.  
 
Stage 2 involved interviewing patients 30 days after being 
discharged, in which they were asked for their experience of 
the discharge process and whether their post discharge care 
had been adequate. 52 discharged patients/advocates 
completed the second survey. 
 
At Stage 3, Healthwatch met with over 20 organisations who 
commissioned, or provided care services within hospital and 
the community for the over 65s in Hillingdon. This stage helped 
the review to identify and understand the processes and 
procedures involved in hospital discharges, and the factors, 
barriers and enablers which contributed to providing patients 
with a safe transfer from hospital to being cared for, out in the 
community. 
 
The Committee was informed that generally the results showed 
that the over 65s had expressed an overwhelming feeling of 
pride in the NHS and hospital discharges. However, it was 
found that staff were working under intense pressure and that 
care could not always be delivered to the required standard. 
 
The review's findings were summarised into three categories: 
 

• Communication and Information 

Communication between patients / carers and health 
professionals and the information provided, was sometimes 
poor. Reference was made to patients being unable to speak to 
doctors, patients not remembering what had been told to them, 
patients not knowing which medicines to take, who was coming 
to see them at home and how to arrange a private care home 
placement or a care package. 
 
Discussion took place on how this could be improved and 
whilst it was acknowledged that hospitals were very busy, it 
was suggested that providing clear written information for 
patients / carers, would improve communication and improve 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



outcomes for patients. 
 
Details of the review's recommendations were reported which 
included updating the Trust's "Working Together" booklet, to 
include a Patient Journey booklet which provided information 
for patients / carers. 
 

• Process and Procedures 

There was a marked difference in the discharge procedures on 
each ward which meant there were discrepancies on how 
patients were treated in terms of being prescribed medication 
and how transport was processed. Examples were given on 
how some patients had been left many hours without hot food 
and refreshments, either in the discharge lounge, in their beds 
or in the ward's day room. The recommendation of the review 
would be to standardise as far as possible the discharge 
process across all wards. 
 
A standardised process would help both staff and patients and 
improve the quality of care to patients. 
 

• Closer Integration and Joined up Working 

Reference was made to the perception from patients that 
organisations did not appear to communicate well with each 
other or work closely enough. Examples of these were 
assessments being carried out separately by social services 
and hospital staff, not all relevant partners being invited to 
multi-disciplinary team meetings etc. 
 
It was important that all organisations were aware of each 
other's services and that the effectiveness of the Joint 
Discharge team was maximised to its fullest. A possible 
solution could be a single point of access for discharge which 
would provide an information hub for professionals and provide 
integrated care for the patient. 
 
Hillingdon Hospital 
 
The following witnesses from Hillingdon Hospital attended the 
meeting Vanessa Saunders (Deputy Director of Nursing), Dr. 
Julie Vowles (Consultant Geriatrician) and Julie Wright 
(Director of Integrated Care). 
 
The context to the situation was provided which was that for 
the over 65s age group, the average length of stay in Hillingdon 
Hospital had increased when compared to 2015/16.  
 
The Committee was informed that a Discharge Task Force 
Programme had been implemented which was a dedicated 
“task force” group which would be focusing on improvement 

 
Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



and transformation. This would undertake a forensic 
investigation of the discharge process for every ward at the 
hospital. 
 
The Committee was informed that the task force consisted of 5 
individuals, who were mainly drawn internally. Data was 
collected over 9 weeks and the hospital held a clinical summit 
reviewing the findings. 
 
The key actions which were agreed to take forward were:- 
 

• Appointing patient flow coordinators to help with 

communication 

• The implementation of a Red to Green system 

• Patient involvement in discharge 

Reference was made to the trial which had taken place on 
Fleming ward which involved the engagement of patients in 
managing their own discharge. One of the initiatives involved 
patients wearing their own clothes. This had a positive outcome 
with research showing that patients wearing their own clothes 
spent an average of 0.75 days less in hospital than patients 
wearing hospital clothes. 
 
Work had been taking place with wards to place patient's 
estimated discharge dates on "About me" notice boards. 
Overall the results had been positive. 
 
Reference was made to the SAFER and Red to Green 
schemes, which were two national tools which had been 
introduced to improve the flow of discharges. 
 
SAFER consisted of a Senior Review which was where all 
patients would receive a consultant review before midday. 
 
All Patients would have an expected discharge date which 
would be based on the medical suitability for discharge status 
agreed by clinical teams.   
 
F - Flow of patients would commence at the earliest 
opportunity (by 10am) from assessment units to inpatient 
wards.  
 
E – Early discharge, 33% of the hospital's patients would be 
discharged from base inpatient wards before midday. 
Medication to be taken home for planned discharges should be 
prescribed and with pharmacy by 3pm the day prior to 
discharge wherever possible to do so. 
 
R – Review, A weekly systematic review of patients with 
extended lengths of stay would take place to identify the issues 

 
Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



and actions required to facilitate discharge. This would be led 
by clinical leaders and be supported by operational managers 
who would help remove constraints that lead to unnecessary 
patient delays. 
 
Details of the Red to Green scheme were reported which was a 
scheme used to signify progress on patient treatment and 
eventually discharge. A red day was what every patient started 
off on. Green days were when patients received interventions 
which supported pathways of care through to discharge, a day 
when all that was planned or had been requested, had taken 
place on the day it had been requested, which resulted in a 
positive experience for the patient. In addition a green day was 
when a patient received care, which could only be delivered in 
hospital. 
 
The Committee was informed that the following improvements 
would be made to the Discharge work stream: 
 

• Redrafting of the hospital's Working Together leaflet to 
encompass all the above mentioned suggestions.   

• The development of written information for patients and 
carers in relation to NHS Continuing Healthcare 
Assessments. 

• The continuation of work in progress to review and 
revise discharge processes and procedures including 
prescribing and issuing of medication to take home and 
the format of Multi-Disciplinary Meetings to aid 
discharge planning.    

• The development of an in-house survey to capture 
patient and carer feedback and satisfaction scores 
following discharge.  

 
Particular mention was made of the improvements needed in 
relation to communication at patient's bed meetings, the 
introduction of virtual Multi-Disciplinary Meetings for Mt Vernon 
wards, the introduction of ward based medication to take home 
and therapy communication. 
 
The Committee was informed that both the hospital and 
Healthwatch were working together and sharing information 
and ideas on improving the discharge process. This was 
welcomed. 
 
Central North West London (CNWL) NHS Foundation Trust 
 
The following witnesses from CNWL attended the meeting Kim 
Cox, Borough Director and Claire Eves, Head of Adult 
Services. 
 
The Committee was informed that the needs of people with 
mental health issues were catered for by Liaison Psychiatry 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



who saw patients who presented themselves at A & E. with 
symptoms ranging from self-harm, suicidal ideation to 
psychotic symptoms. Patients were assessed and sign posted 
to other services. Patients were also seen in general hospital 
wards where again they were assessed, staff were advised and 
help was given with the discharge plan if their mental health 
needs dictated it. 
 
The Clinical Health Psychology service helped patients who 
were having serious difficulty coping with an illness or a 
disability, which impacted on their lives.  
 
Reference was made to the Rapid Response Team (RRT) who 
provided a rapid response 7 days a week in A & E. 
Assessments were made of patients to facilitate their discharge 
home. Specifically in relation to patients over the age of 65, 
RRT Clinicians attended wards to assess patients and if 
suitable for discharge, they were discharged under the care of 
RRT. 
 
The Committee was provided with details of the Homesafe 
scheme which was commissioned to help facilitate early 
supported discharge, which included people aged 65 years and 
over. Through this service, patients had access to therapy, 
nursing and/or care support, including a night sitting service. 
 
Areas which had been identified to improve discharges were: 
 

• Better information sharing through IT. Sharing 
information would avoid duplication of assessments. It 
was important that the service had information of other 
health issues of patients they were treating with mental 
health issues 

• The development of 15 Care Connection Teams 
• Reviewing and improving the current Rapid Response 

Service 
• The establishing of a single point of access 
• Better integration of intermediate care services    

   
Discussion 
 
Recognition was made of the requirement for a single point of 
access for discharge which would improve the communication 
to the patient / carer. The Committee was reassured that this 
was already being put in place across North West London and 
would greatly improve the process of discharge. 
 
It was acknowledged that joint and closer working would 
improve the process and maximise the use of resources and 
avoid duplication. Members acknowledged that hospitals were 
very busy places and health professionals had heavy and 
involved workloads, but the suggested improvements would 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



ultimately improve the discharge experience for patients. 
 
Discussion took place on the funding for social care and the 
difficulties in terms of recruitment, but the Committee was 
informed that authorities were introducing new schemes to 
attract and fill vacant posts. 
 
The Committee were provided with demographic information 
for the Borough which indicated that there were an increasing 
number of older people living in the Borough. With people living 
longer the incidences of people with dementia was on the 
increase, which was impacting on social and health care. This 
was likely to increase with Projecting Older People Population 
Information projections suggesting that the number of people 
with dementia was likely to increase by 14% to 3,133 between 
2015 and 2020 and by 25% to 3,606 in the period between 
2020 and 2025. This would be a challenge for the provision of 
health and social care services. 
 
A cause for the delay in discharge was because of the 
changing demographics of the population and some of the 
complex care needs of patients.   
 
The Committee noted that the diversity of Hillingdon's 
population needed to be taken into consideration and that 
certain ethnic groups were sometimes reluctant to come 
forward.       
 
The witnesses were thanked for the information they had 
provided the review. 
      
RESOLVED – 
 
1. That the witnesses be thanked for the information 
they had presented and the evidence be used as part 
of the review.  

 
2. That for the next meeting of the Committee, officers 
be asked to summarise the evidence received during 
the review to enable suggested recommendations to 
be made. 

 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Khalid 
Ahmed / Gary 
Collier 
 
 

34. UPDATE ON STROKE PREVENTION REVIEW 
 
Members were provided with a progress report on the 
Committee's Stroke Prevention review. 
 
The Committee noted the information which had been provided 
in the report on the work which was being carried out by other 
public health authorities. It was noted that Hillingdon was 
ahead of other authorities in terms of initiatives for stroke 
prevention.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
The Director of Public Health reported that for staff within 
Hillingdon, there were a number of initiatives which were used. 
There was a weight management programme, smoking 
cessations sessions and health checks. Reference was made 
to the possibility atrial fibrillation detection, and self-help health 
checks being made available for staff.  
 
The targeting of staff could be an opportunity for the Council to 
promote stroke prevention to the wider population of the 
Borough. 
 
Reference was made to the visit to Hillingdon Hospital's Stroke 
Unit by Councillor East who provided the Committee with a 
report on her findings. The Committee thanked her for the 
information provided. 
 
Discussion took place on suggested recommendations for the 
review and officers were asked to take forward the following 
suggestions, and include them in the final report for the review: 
 

1. That Officers be requested to develop the universal 

wellbeing offer to prevent stroke and for this to include smoking 

cessation, physical activity and health - (Primarily with the 

Wellbeing Team) 

2. That Officers be requested to develop a campaign on stroke 
risk and stroke prevention using multiple channels which is 
sensitive and appropriate. 
 
3. That the Council, working in partnership with the Hillingdon 
CCG, be requested to promote and develop health checks as a 
vehicle for identifying residents at an increased risk of stroke. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
1. That officers be asked to update the previously 
circulated draft final report with the information 
above, and submit the report to the next meeting of 
the Committee for approval. 

  

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Steve Hajioff 
/ Khalid 
Ahmed  
 
 

35. FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Committee asked that a report on the Integrated Sexual 
Reproductive Health Services be brought to a future meeting of 
the Committee    
 
Noted.  
 
 
 

 
 
Khalid 
Ahmed 

Page 8



36. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Members noted that the Chairman of the Adult Safeguarding 
Board would be invited to attend the Committee's meeting on 
21 February 2017 to present the Board's Annual Report.   
 
Discussion took place on possible review topics for the 
Committee and the following areas were raised: 
 

• The Welfare Benefit Reforms and the Changes being 

Implemented, eg the new benefits cap? 

• Home Ownership in the Borough - the success of it. 

• Right to Buy Scheme. 

• Asylum seeking children in the Borough. 

• Loneliness. 

The Chairman of the Committee agreed to discuss the potential 
review topics with officers and at the next meeting of the 
Committee, a presentation would be given on the preferred 
option. 
 
Noted.  
  

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Khalid 
Ahmed 

 Meeting commenced at 7.00pm and closed at 8.40pm 
Next meeting: 18 January 2017 at 7.00pm      
  

 

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions 
please contact Khalid Ahmed on 01895 250833. These minutes are circulated to Councillors, 
Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.  
  

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
- Major Review 2016/17 - Hospital Discharges 
 
 

Contact Officers: Khalid Ahmed 
Telephone: 01895 250833  

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM   
  
The Committee is asked to give consideration to the evidence given during the review and 
to consider making suggesting recommendations to take forward.  
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE   
  
The Committee is asked to give consideration to the evidence received during the 
review and with the assistance of officers, suggest recommendations for inclusion 
in the Committee's draft final report.     
 
INFORMATION  
 
1. For Members information the evidence from the witness sessions held on 4 October, 2 

November and 14 December 2016 is detailed below. A further report will be circulated 
prior to the meeting which will outline some themes and some suggested 
recommendations for Members to discuss. 

 
4 OCTOBER 2016 
 
2.The aim of the review was to examine the discharge process from hospital and how 

people were supported into the least restrictive care setting in order to maximise their 

independence and safely meet their needs.  

 

3. The focus of the review would be on Hillingdon Hospital where around 80% of the 

people admitted were from within the Borough of Hillingdon. Of those admitted as 

emergencies, almost 30% were of people aged 65 and over and registered with 

Hillingdon GPs. 

 

The Committee agreed that this age profile would be the focus of the review. 

 

Current context 

 

4.The Committee was informed that changes in the levels of activity in the last two years 

had increased patients delayed transfer to care. Reference was made to research which 

showed that the longer an elderly person was in hospital, they were more likely to 

become increasingly confused, and there was also an increasing risk of them 

contracting a hospital acquired infection. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

5. In addition, delays in discharging people who were medically fit added increasing 

pressure on hospital bed provision, which could lead to higher costs. 

 

6. Reference was made to NHS England (NHSE) who had reported that nationally, 

everyday more than 6,000 patients who were well enough to leave hospital were unable 

to do so because of insufficient local care models. With a 23% rise of delays in 

discharge nationally since June 2015, “joined-up care” remained the single most 

important feature for ensuring greater patient safety and efficient hospital discharge 

planning. 

  

7. The National Audit Office (NAO) estimated the cost to the NHS of older patients in 

hospital beds, no longer in need of acute treatment, totalled £820 million every year.  

Longer stays in hospital also led to increased social care costs. 

Preventative Initiatives 

8. The most effective method for addressing hospital admission was to prevent hospital 

admissions from occurring in the first place. 

• Development of an anticipatory model of care for older people 

This was where older people, who had been identified as being at risk of hospital 

admission, were invited into their GP surgery to explore the completion of a care plan.  

 

This was to identify any interventions which might prevent an escalation of need.   

 

For people with more complex needs, a multi-disciplinary team (MDT) approach was 

taken. For example, an approach which would involve professionals from different 

health and care organisations, seeking to identify solutions which would prevent or 

delay further escalation of need and enable the management of the person in their 

usual place of residence. 

 

H4All (a consortium of local third sector organisations) played a crucial role in this 

initiative. 

 

• Better Care Fund Plan (BCF) 

 

9.  A key priority of Hillingdon's 2016/17 BCF was the prevention of admission to hospital 

and this was reflected in its eight schemes that looked at issues such as addressing 

the needs of older people at risk of falls, stroke, dementia and/or social isolation, 

preventing admissions to hospital from care homes and supporting people at home 

who have had an escalation of need but did not require admission to hospital. This 

initiative involved cross over work with what was happening in GP surgeries. 

 

Page 12



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

10. The Committee was informed that delayed transfer of care occurred when a patient 

was ready for transfer from a hospital bed, but was still occupying such a bed. This was 

a joint health and social care issue.  

 

11. Reference was made to improvements being made in acute care which were helping 

support discharges from hospital. These were included in the draft scoping report for 

Members information. 

 

12. Members were informed that discharges from hospital were complex issues and 

increased integrated working was required from both health and social care 

professionals. 

 

13. Reference was made to the work of LondonADASS, who were working in collaboration 

with NHSE and the Local Government Association to support local systems to improve 

the performance of hospital discharges. The Hospital Admission and Discharge 

Pathways Network had been created which aimed at developing and sharing good 

practise in addressing delayed transfers. 

 

14. Discussion took place on the information provided and the Director of Public Health 

reiterated that patients leaving hospital was often a complex issue. Additionally there 

were instances where people had been admitted to Hillingdon Hospital who need not 

have been admitted in the first place. 

 

15. The Committee noted that progress was being made, but it was recognised that there 

were inconsistencies, which would only be eradicated once changes in working 

practices had been given time. 

 

16. Discussion took place on communications with the family of the patient and whether 

families were given details of options in terms of different care homes. The Head of 

Social Work reported that there was on-line information available for families and early 

discussions took place on patient pathways. 

 

17. The draft scoping report provided details on the issues and challenges to a smoother 

discharge process and pathway in Hillingdon. Some of these were discussed, 

particularly around the need to align hospital processes. This would require the 

alignment of decisions on availability of medication and transport home, which was not 

consistently occurring across all wards at Hillingdon Hospital. 

 

18. The fragmentation of out of hospital services created a problem of multiple hand-offs 

between organisations which on occasions meant that the needs of residents were not 

being addressed by the most appropriate professional. 

 

19. Members asked that data be provided on what the over 65 year olds were in hospital 

for to enable a focus on the key health issues. It was noted that during the winter 

Page 13



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

months that hospital admissions were higher, with respiratory conditions increasing and 

potentially more falls taking place.  

 

20. Particular reference was made to the quarter 1 2016/17 statistics which showed there 

had been 430 emergency admissions to Hillingdon Hospital from care homes, with 

many of these being older people suffering from dementia. 

 
2 NOVEMBER 2016 
 
21.For this witness session, the Committee was provided with evidence from the Chief 

Operating Officer of Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group and from the Clinical 
Team Leader for the Continuing Healthcare Team. 

 
Clinical Commissioning Groups' Perspective on Hospital Discharges  
 
22. The Committee was informed that the Clinical Commissioning Group was clinically-

led statutory NHS bodies responsible for the planning and commissioning of 
health care services for their local area.  

 
23. Commissioning was about getting the best possible health outcomes for the local 

population, by assessing local needs, deciding priorities and strategies, and then 
buying services on behalf of the population from providers such as hospitals, clinics, 
community health bodies, etc.  

 
24. The Chief Operating Officer, Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group attended the 

meeting and reported that there had been a 12% increase in the over 80s age group 
attending Accident & Emergency at Hillingdon Hospital. With an ageing population and 
the increase in the number of dementia cases, the planning of hospital discharges had 
become challenging. 

 
25. It was important that the needs of the patients were clearly identified and there needed 

to be a consistency of processes to enable all agencies to identify who was 
accountable for providing particular elements of care and support. Care Planning was 
vital with an overarching Care Plan for each person. This required close working with 
social care professionals and the timely carrying out of processes.  

 
26. As hospitals were busy, often there was reactive rather than proactive responses to 

people's needs.  The aim should be to work closely with partners to get patients home 
sooner and help combat the growing pressures the hospital was experiencing, which 
were being exacerbated by delayed transfers of care. 

 
27. The transfer of care planning requirements should improve patient experience and 

quality of care and enable all medically fit patients to be discharged with appropriate 
care and support at home, wherever possible. This would reduce delayed transfers of 
care and lower the readmissions of patients. 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Continuing Healthcare Team perspective on Hospital Discharges 
 
28. The Clinical Team Leader for the Continuing Healthcare Team reported that 

Continuing Healthcare (CHC) was the name given to a package of care which was 
arranged and funded solely by the NHS for individuals outside of hospital who had 
on-going health care needs. Adult Continuing Healthcare was provided when an 
individual had been assessed by a multi-disciplinary team and they had been 
deemed to have a primary health need. After this had been defined, a package of 
care would be developed.  

29. Members were informed that continuing healthcare was available in any setting to 
meet assessed needs, including the patient’s own home or a care home. Reference 
was made to assessments for continuing healthcare being triggered when a person 
was admitted to hospital. A person who was eligible for CHC would typically have 
complex health conditions and would be eligible for NHS care. If a person was not 
entitled to NHS care they would be eligible for means tested local authority social 
care.  

 
30. Reference was made to the decision-making process which should always be 

centred on the person requiring the care. This meant putting the individual and their 
views about their needs and the care and support required at the centre of the 
process. 

 
31. Reference was made to the use of the Checklist Tool, which was a screening tool 

used to assess whether a full assessment of eligibility for continuing healthcare was 
required. Once the Checklist had been completed and it indicated that there was a 
need to carry out a full assessment of eligibility for NHS continuing healthcare, the 
individual completing the Checklist would contact the Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) who would arrange for a multidisciplinary team to carry out an up-to-date 
assessment of the person's needs.  

 
32. Unfortunately hospitals were very busy so it was inevitable that there would be 

delays. It was important that families of patients and the hospital were involved in 
discussions regarding eligibility for care but that expectations of families should be 
managed due to issues of choice of care and the cost of care packages. 

 
33. A lack of clarity for patients and their families about care choices, including the 

funding of care, was identified as a cause of some delays in discharge.  It was 
recognised that this could be addressed by the availability of better information at 
an earlier stage in order to manage expectations.  The Committee was informed 
that addressing this was included within the DTOC action plan for 2016/17.  

 
34. Eligibility criteria assessments had to be completed within 30 days, but disputes 

between parties sometimes resulted in delays. Making decisions on a relative with 
health needs was a stressful and upsetting time for family members, with 
disagreements sometimes taking place in relation to making the right health care 
choices for their elderly relative. The important role of Advocacy Services in the 
process was noted. 

 

Page 15



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

35. Discussion took place on the changing demographics of the population with an 
increasing number of dementia cases in the elderly age group. The number of these 
cases, made the process of discharge challenging.  

 
36. It was generally noted that the provision of care homes for dementia was a difficult 

area, in terms of costs and affordability. Members asked for details on what the 
proportion of delays of transfer from hospital were dementia cases. Reference was 
made to the provision of "step down" beds which were used for patients who were 
awaiting discharge, but   where final decisions on care had not been decided. 

 
37. There were inconsistencies in how quickly the discharge process started which 

meant that sometimes the complexities about a person's personal circumstances 
and their health and care needs were not identified at an early stage to enable them 
to be discharged quicker from hospital. An example was given of where adaptations 
were required in people's homes, which would enable people to remain in their own 
homes and retain some independence. In the main, adaptations could be installed 
the next day, however, more complex adaptations could take time, which could 
delay a discharge. 

 
14 DECEMBER 2016 
 
38.  For this witness session, the Committee was provided with the perspective on 

hospital discharges from patients (Healthwatch) and from Hillingdon Hospital and 
Central North West London NHS Foundation Trust. 

 
Healthwatch Hillingdon  
 
39. Graham Hawkes, Chief Executive Officer of Healthwatch attended the meeting and 

provided Members with a summary of the recent review which had been carried out 
by the organisation into hospital discharges from Hillingdon Hospital. 

 
40. The project aimed to gain an understanding of the discharge process from the 

perspective of the patient. It looked at what went well, and what did not go well. The 
project focused on adults over the age of 65 and their experiences of being 
discharged from Hillingdon Hospital. 

 
41. The methodology of the review was split into three stages. Stage 1 involved 172 

patients being interviewed and completing a survey on 17 different wards at the 
Hospital. Dependent on the condition of the patient, patient's advocates completed 
the survey. Stage 2 involved interviewing patients 30 days after being discharged, 
in which they were asked for their experience of the discharge process and whether 
their post discharge care had been adequate. 52 discharged patients/advocates 
completed the second survey. 

 
42. At Stage 3, Healthwatch met with over 20 organisations who commissioned, or 

provided care services within hospital and the community for the over 65s in 
Hillingdon. This stage helped the review to identify and understand the processes 
and procedures involved in hospital discharges, and the factors, barriers and 
enablers which contributed to providing patients with a safe transfer from hospital to 
being cared for, out in the community. 

Page 16



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

 
43. The Committee was informed that generally the results showed that the over 65s 

had expressed an overwhelming feeling of pride in the NHS and hospital 
discharges. However, it was found that staff were working under intense pressure 
and that care could not always be delivered to the required standard. 

 
 The review's findings were summarised into three categories: 
 

• Communication and Information 

44. Communication between patients / carers and health professionals and the 
information provided, was sometimes poor. Reference was made to patients being 
unable to speak to doctors, patients not remembering what had been told to them, 
patients not knowing which medicines to take, who was coming to see them at home 
and how to arrange a private care home placement or a care package. 

 
45. Discussion took place on how this could be improved and whilst it was 

acknowledged that hospitals were very busy, it was suggested that providing clear 
written information for patients / carers, would improve communication and improve 
outcomes for patients. 

 
46. Details of the review's recommendations were reported which included updating the 

Trust's "Working Together" booklet, to include a Patient Journey booklet which 
provided information for patients / carers. 

 

• Process and Procedures 

47. There was a marked difference in the discharge procedures on each ward which 
meant there were discrepancies on how patients were treated in terms of being 
prescribed medication and how transport was processed. Examples were given on 
how some patients had been left many hours without hot food and refreshments, 
either in the discharge lounge, in their beds or in the ward's day room. The 
recommendation of the review would be to standardise as far as possible the 
discharge process across all wards. A standardised process would help both staff 
and patients and improve the quality of care to patients. 

 

• Closer Integration and Joined up Working 

48. Reference was made to the perception from patients that organisations did not 
appear to communicate well with each other or work closely enough. Examples of 
these were assessments being carried out separately by social services and hospital 
staff, not all relevant partners being invited to multi-disciplinary team meetings etc. 

 
49. It was important that all organisations were aware of each other's services and that 

the effectiveness of the Joint Discharge team was maximised to its fullest. A possible 
solution could be a single point of access for discharge which would provide an 
information hub for professionals and provide integrated care for the patient. 

 
 
 

Page 17



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Hillingdon Hospital 
 
50. The following witnesses from Hillingdon Hospital attended the meeting Vanessa 

Saunders (Deputy Director of Nursing), Dr. Julie Vowles (Consultant Geriatrician) 
and Julie Wright (Director of Integrated Care). 

 
51. The context to the situation was provided which was that for the over 65s age 

group, the average length of stay in Hillingdon Hospital had increased when 
compared to 2015/16. The Committee was informed that a Discharge Task Force 
Programme had been implemented which was a dedicated “task force” group which 
would be focusing on improvement and transformation. This would undertake a 
forensic investigation of the discharge process for every ward at the hospital. 

 
52. The Committee was informed that the task force consisted of 5 individuals, who 

were mainly drawn internally. Data was collected over 9 weeks and the hospital 
held a clinical summit reviewing the findings. 

 
The key actions which were agreed to take forward were:- 

 

• Appointing patient flow coordinators to help with communication 

• The implementation of a Red to Green system 

• Patient involvement in discharge 

53. Reference was made to the trial which had taken place on Fleming ward which 
involved the engagement of patients in managing their own discharge. One of the 
initiatives involved patients wearing their own clothes. This had a positive outcome 
with research showing that patients wearing their own clothes spent an average of 
0.75 days less in hospital than patients wearing hospital clothes. 

 
54. Work had been taking place with wards to place patient's estimated discharge dates 

on "About me" notice boards. Overall the results had been positive. 
 
55. Reference was made to the SAFER and Red to Green schemes, which were two 

national tools which had been introduced to improve the flow of discharges. SAFER 
consisted of a Senior Review which was where all patients would receive a 
consultant review before midday. All Patients would have an expected discharge 
date which would be based on the medical suitability for discharge status agreed by 
clinical teams.  F - Flow of patients would commence at the earliest opportunity (by 
10am) from assessment units to inpatient wards. E – Early discharge, 33% of the 
hospital's patients would be discharged from base inpatient wards before midday. 
Medication to be taken home for planned discharges should be prescribed and with 
pharmacy by 3pm the day prior to discharge wherever possible to do so. R – 
Review, A weekly systematic review of patients with extended lengths of stay would 
take place to identify the issues and actions required to facilitate discharge. This 
would be led by clinical leaders and be supported by operational managers who 
would help remove constraints that lead to unnecessary patient delays. 

 
56. Details of the Red to Green scheme were reported which was a scheme used to 

signify progress on patient treatment and eventually discharge. A red day was what 
every patient started off on. Green days were when patients received interventions 

Page 18



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

which supported pathways of care through to discharge, a day when all that was 
planned or had been requested, had taken place on the day it had been requested, 
which resulted in a positive experience for the patient. In addition a green day was 
when a patient received care, which could only be delivered in hospital. 

 
57. The Committee was informed that the following improvements would be made to the 

Discharge work stream: 
 

• Redrafting of the hospital's Working Together leaflet to encompass all the above 
mentioned suggestions.   

• The development of written information for patients and carers in relation to NHS 
Continuing Healthcare Assessments. 

• The continuation of work in progress to review and revise discharge processes and 
procedures including prescribing and issuing of medication to take home and the 
format of Multi-Disciplinary Meetings to aid discharge planning.    

• The development of an in-house survey to capture patient and carer feedback and 
satisfaction scores following discharge.  

 
58. Particular mention was made of the improvements needed in relation to 

communication at patient's bed meetings, the introduction of virtual Multi-
Disciplinary Meetings for Mt Vernon wards, the introduction of ward based 
medication to take home and therapy communication. 

 
59. The Committee was informed that both the hospital and Healthwatch were working 

together and sharing information and ideas on improving the discharge process. 
This was welcomed. 

 
Central North West London (CNWL) NHS Foundation Trust 
 
60. The following witnesses from CNWL attended the meeting Kim Cox, Borough 

Director and Claire Eves, Head of Adult Services. 
 
61. The Committee was informed that the needs of people with mental health issues 

were catered for by Liaison Psychiatry who saw patients who presented themselves 
at A & E. with symptoms ranging from self-harm, suicidal ideation to psychotic 
symptoms. Patients were assessed and sign posted to other services. Patients 
were also seen in general hospital wards where again they were assessed, staff 
were advised and help was given with the discharge plan if their mental health 
needs dictated it. 

 
62. The Clinical Health Psychology service helped patients who were having serious 

difficulty coping with an illness or a disability, which impacted on their lives.  
 
63. Reference was made to the Rapid Response Team (RRT) who provided a rapid 

response 7 days a week in A & E. Assessments were made of patients to facilitate 
their discharge home. Specifically in relation to patients over the age of 65, RRT 
Clinicians attended wards to assess patients and if suitable for discharge, they were 
discharged under the care of RRT. 

 

Page 19



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

64. The Committee was provided with details of the Homesafe scheme which was 
commissioned to help facilitate early supported discharge, which included people 
aged 65 years and over. Through this service, patients had access to therapy, 
nursing and/or care support, including a night sitting service. 

 
Areas which had been identified to improve discharges were: 

 
• Better information sharing through IT. Sharing information would avoid duplication 

of assessments. It was important that the service had information of other health 
issues of patients they were treating with mental health issues 

• The development of 15 Care Connection Teams 
• Reviewing and improving the current Rapid Response Service 
• The establishing of a single point of access 
• Better integration of intermediate care services    

   
Discussion 
 
65. Recognition was made of the requirement for a single point of access for discharge 

which would improve the communication to the patient / carer. The Committee was 
reassured that this was already being put in place across North West London and 
would greatly improve the process of discharge. 

 
66. It was acknowledged that joint and closer working would improve the process and 

maximise the use of resources and avoid duplication. Members acknowledged that 
hospitals were very busy places and health professionals had heavy and involved 
workloads, but the suggested improvements would ultimately improve the discharge 
experience for patients. 

 
67. Discussion took place on the funding for social care and the difficulties in terms of 

recruitment, but the Committee was informed that authorities were introducing new 
schemes to attract and fill vacant posts. 

 
68. The Committee was provided with demographic information for the Borough which 

indicated that there were an increasing number of older people living in the 
Borough. With people living longer the incidences of people with dementia was on 
the increase, which was impacting on social and health care. This was likely to 
increase with Projecting Older People Population Information projections 
suggesting that the number of people with dementia was likely to increase by 14% 
to 3,133 between 2015 and 2020 and by 25% to 3,606 in the period between 2020 
and 2025. This would be a challenge for the provision of health and social care 
services. 

 
69. A cause for the delay in discharge was because of the changing demographics of 

the population and some of the complex care needs of patients.   
 
70. The Committee noted that the diversity of Hillingdon's population needed to be 

taken into consideration and that certain ethnic groups were sometimes reluctant to 
come forward.       

 

Page 20



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
 
 

18 January 2017 
 

PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Second Major Review -  Possible Review Topic - Implementation of 
Benefit Changes  
 
 

Contact Officers: Khalid Ahmed 
Telephone: 01895 250833  

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM   
  
To be given a presentation on the Committee's possible second review topic of the 
Municipal Year: The Implementation of Benefit Changes. 
  
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE   
  
The Committee is asked to give consideration to undertaking a review which will 
look at the Implementation of Benefit Changes, and if agreed, asking officers to 
submit a draft scoping report to the next meeting of the Committee      
 
INFORMATION  
 
1. At the last meeting of the Committee held on 14 December 2016, discussion took place 

on potential review topics for the Committee to consider.  
 
2. If Members recall the following possible review topics were mentioned: 
 

• The Welfare Benefit Reforms and the Changes being Implemented, eg the new 

benefits cap. 

• Home Ownership in the Borough - the success of it. 

• Right to Buy Scheme. 

• Asylum seeking children in the Borough. 

• Loneliness. 

3. After discussion with officers, the Chairman of the Committee has suggested that the    

Committee give consideration to a review which looks at how the new Benefit changes 

are to be implemented. For this meeting, the Council's Benefits Manager will attend the 

meeting to provide the Committee with the background to the topic. 

4. Subject to the Committee's approval to undertake the review, a draft scoping report will 

be submitted to the February meeting, together with witnesses being invited to attend.  

5. For Member's information there is a paper produced by London Councils sometime 

back which details the benefit changes for 2016/17 and 2017/18 (Appendix A). Please 

note many of the comments in the comment field are out of date. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
 
 

18 January 2017 
 

PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 
  
 

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



 
Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 

18 January 2018 
 

PART I – Members, Public and Press 
 

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 

Contact Officer: Khalid Ahmed 
Telephone:01895 250833 

 
 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
The Committee is required to consider the Forward Plan and provide Cabinet with any 
comments it wishes to make before the decision is taken. 
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 

 
1. Decide to comment on any items coming before Cabinet 

 
2. Decide not to comment on any items coming before Cabinet 
 

 
INFORMATION 
 
1. The Forward Plan is updated on the 15th of each month. An edited version to include 

only items relevant to the Committee’s remit is attached below. The full version can 
be found on the front page of the ‘Members’ Desk’ under ‘Useful Links’. 

 
 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 

 
1. Members decide whether to examine any of the reports listed on the Forward 

Plan at a future meeting. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Page 28



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 

Contact Officer: Khalid Ahmed 
Telephone: 01895 250833 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This 
is a standard item at the end of the agenda. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for meetings  
 

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and/or reviews.  
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
 
All meetings to start at 7.00pm 
 
 

Meetings  Room 
21 June 2016 CR 4 

28 July 2016 (CANCELLED) CR 6 

6 September 2016 CR 5 

4 October 2016 CR 6 

2 November 2016 CR 4 

14 December 2016 CR 6 

18 January 2017 CR 6 

21 February 2017 CR 6 

23 March 2017 CR 5 

19 April 2017 CR 5 

 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 29



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
 
2016/17 - DRAFT Work Programme 
 

Meeting Date Item 

21 June 2016 Major Reviews Topics 2016/17 

Work programme for 2016/17 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

 
 
 28 July 2016 
(CANCELLED) 

Budget Planning Report for SS,Hsg&PH 

Scoping Report for Major Review 

Work Programme 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

 
 

 6 September 2016 Major Review - Hospital Discharges - background 
information 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Annual Report: Adult Safeguarding Board 

Annual Complaints Report 

Work Programme 

 
 
  4 October 2016 
 
 

Presentation and Scoping Report for Major Review - 
Hospital Discharges 

Update on Stroke Prevention review 

Annual Report: Adult Safeguarding Board - Officer 
responses to questions from Members 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

  
 
 
 

Page 30



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 

2 November 2016 Major Review  - Hospital Discharges - Witness 
Session 

Update on previous review recommendations 

 (Shared Lives Review) 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 
14 December2016 Major Review  - Hospital Discharges - Witness 

Session 

Stroke Prevention Review - Update 

Consideration of Second Major Review 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 
 
18 January 2017 Budget Proposals Report for 2016/17 

Major Review  - Hospital Discharges - Consideration 
of evidence and discussion on suggested 
recommendations 

Major Review - Stroke Prevention - Draft Final 
Report  

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Second Major Review - Implementation of Benefit 
Changes 

Work Programme 

 
 
21 February 2017 Cabinet Forward Plan 

Scoping report and Witness Session for Second 
Major Review - Implementation of Benefit Changes 

Minor Review - Employment of People with 
Disabilities 

Annual Report: Adult Safeguarding Board - 
Chairman invited to attend 

Page 31



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
18 January 2017 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 

Work Programme 

Witness Session 

 
 

23 March 2017 Cabinet Forward Plan 

Integrated Sexual Reproductive Health Services - 
Information Item 

Work Programme 

Witness Session for Second Major Review - 
Implementation of Benefit Changes 

 
 

19 April 2017 Cabinet Forward Plan 

Major Review Second Final report 

 
 

Page 32


	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2016
	6 Major Review 2016/17 - Hospital Discharges - Consideration of evidence and suggested recommendations
	7 Possible Second Major Review Topic - 2016/17
	London Council's Benefit Changes

	9 Forward Plan
	FP SSPOC

	10 Work Programme

